1992

Hilde Snitchler v. Robert G. Montgomery : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Court of Appeals has jurisdiction in this matter as a domestic relations matter, pursuant to UCA 78a-2a-3(h).

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

Issue: Was the trial court correct in overturning the prior negotiated QDRO of the parties without a compelling reason or even a change of circumstances?

Standard of Review: A stipulated order negotiated with the aid of counsel and reviewed and approved by the court should not be lightly over turned but only for compelling reasons. Land v. Land, 605 P.2d 1248 (Utah 1980); Mitchell v. Mitchell, 527 P.2d 1359 (Utah 1974). The conclusions of law may be assessed for correctness without deference to the trial court. State v. Rio Vista Oil, Ltd., 786 P.2d 1343 (Utah 1990).

DETERMINATIVE LAW

To upset a prior divorce decree a change of circumstance must be found. Kessimakis v. Kessimakis, 580 P.2d 1090 (Utah 1978). A stipulated settlement is not to be lightly overturned. A decree can not be changed just because one of the parties now regrets the decision. Land v. Land, 605 P.2d 1248, (Utah 1980). The reason to change a stipulated, reviewed order must be compelling and not just because one party is upset about value. Mitchell v. Mitchell, 527

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the case.

This is an appeal from an order entered in the Second District Court by Judge Douglas Cornaby granting a petition to modify the retirement provisions of a prior divorce decree that had been modified by stipulation of the parties through negotiation of counsel and approval of the court.

B. Course of proceedings.

A divorce decree was entered that contained provisions that sought on its face to put into effect the Woodward provisions. The decree was modified by stipulation to correct perceived errors in the original order. The parties through counsel negotiated a new Qualified Domestic Relations Order to take advantage of a partial lump sum distribution prior to the federal civil service elimination of partial lump sum retirement benefits. Plaintiff/Appellee filed the present petition to modify said order and to return to the provisions of the prior QDRO.

C. Disposition at trial court.

Judge Cornaby granted the petition finding that Defendant/Appellant had misrepresented the facts of the retirement. The court ordered that Plaintiff/Appellant receive a percentage portion of each monthly Civil Service retirement check.

STATEMENT OF FACTS:

a. The parties were divorced in 1985. The divorce decree provides for a division of the retirement benefits of the parties. (See Divorce Decree of December 16, 1985.)

b. In 1986 the parties by stipulation modified the retirement provisions of the divorce decree.(See Stipulation and Order In Re Modification of Decree of January 8, 1986.)

c. The Civil Service Office of Personnel Management, announced the termination of participants right to take part of their retirement as a lump sum prior to receiving regular monthly payments. Retirees had to actually retire before December 1, 1990 or else lose the right to take the lump sum option. Mr. Montgomery determined that he desired to take the lump sum option. (Transcript Page 21 Line 21.)

d. In October of 1989 Mr. Montgomery approached Mrs. Montgomery about both of them agreeing to allow the other to take their retirement partially through a lump sum. Mrs. Montgomery informed him she had already taken her retirement, but agreed to allow him the same right. She signed a document (Defendant's Exhibit 1) consenting that Mr. Montgomery take a portion of his retirement using the lump sum option prior to receiving monthly payments. (Transcript Page 28 Line 15; Page 12 Line 24.)

e. Mr. Montgomery informed Mrs. Montgomery that if she did not agree to his taking a partial lump sum portion of his retirement he could not retire at that time. He informed her that

he would have to work approximately 10 additional years before retiring in order to earn enough additional retirement benefits to pay her the \$400 a month previously ordered if he was going to keep the standard of living he wanted in retirement. (Transcript Page 24 Line 8ff; Page 8 Line 18ff; Page 34 Line 19-24.)

f. Mr. Montgomery filed the documents requesting retirement and the payment of his lump sum as part of his retirement benefits. He was informed by Civil Service that the Qualified Domestic Relations Order on file would have to be modified before his request could be granted. (Transcript Page 23 Line 15.)

g. In the summer of 1990 the parties through counsel began negotiation of a stipulation to modify the existing QDRO. The parties had no direct contact except through counsel. (Transcript Page 9 Line 8.)

h. Mr. Montgomery never told the former Mrs. Montgomery that if she accepted a portion of the lump sum that Mr. Montgomery would receive no further retirement benefits. The former Mrs. Montgomery upon advice of her counsel and after her independent investigation of her rights opted to execute the stipulation that became the basis of the court's order modifying the Qualified Domestic Relations Order. (Transcript Page 11 to Page 13.)

i. Mr. Montgomery retired and processed his claim for benefits in accordance with the QDRO agreed upon by the parties and reduced to an order by the court.

j. Mrs. Snitchler shortly thereafter informed Civil

Service that the lump sum retirement benefit should not be allowed. The lump sum was only recently partially received by Mr. Montgomery. He has tendered to Mrs. Montgomery her portion of the retirement benefits under the lump sum. She has refused to accept it. (Transcript Page 38 Line 8.)

k. Mr. Montgomery cannot go back to work and lacks the income to live on if required to now pay his former spouse \$400.00 per month. Mr. Montgomery relied to his detriment on Mrs. Montgomery's execution of the stipulation and order. He retired based upon the order. He cannot now get his job back. He has planned his retirement on the income he negotiated to receive. (Transcript Page 24 Line 8ff.)

l. Mrs. Montgomery brought the present action to modify the QDRO to give her monthly benefits.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

POINT I

An order for retirement was negotiated. The proposition presented to Mrs. Snitchler was accept a portion of the partial lump sum payment now or Mr. Montgomery must wait about ten years to accumulate enough retirement benefits to achieve the standard of living for retirement he wants.

There is no substantial change of circumstance. there is no compelling reason to overturn a stipulated decree.

POINT II

There was no misrepresentation. A misrepresentation is an act of untruth or concealment. Mrs. Snitchler acted on the advice of her counsel after her own independent investigation. Neither Mrs. Snitchler nor her counsel say they relied on Mr. Montgomery or his counsel.

Mrs. Snitchler chose some money now rather than wait for a monthly income stream in the future. There is no evidence that Mr. Montgomery misrepresented anything to her.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN OVERTURNING A STIPULATED ORDER.

The fundamental, telling fact of the present case is that the parties entered a voluntary stipulation negotiated through counsel that was received and approved by the court. The parties in the present case never spoke with each other after October of 1989. All of the negotiations that took place from September through November of 1990 were done through the parties respective counsel.

The general rule is that once a matter is litigated and resolved it is *res judicata*. The court in *Land v Land* 605 P.2d 1248 (Utah 1980) after observing that the rules of equity apply to divorce matters said:

... when a decree is based upon a property agreement, forged by the parties and sanctioned by the court, equity must take such agreement into consideration. Equity is not available to reinstate rights and privileges voluntarily contracted away simply because one has come to regret the bargain made. Accordingly, the law limits the continuing jurisdiction

of the court where a property settlement has been incorporated into the decree, and the outright abrogation of the provisions of such an agreement is only to be resorted to with great reluctance and for compelling reasons. (Citations deleted.)

The Utah Court has consistently said a finality must be given to matters previously settled. In the present case there is a stipulation entered by the parties. The stipulation contains specific language that this is a final and complete resolution of all matters relating to retirement between the parties. Mrs. Snitchler knew and understood that this was the intent of the stipulation. (Transcript Page 33 Line 22 to Page 34 Line 9.)

The initial proposed stipulation presented to Mrs. Snitchler for her consideration, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, essentially gave the lump sum amount to Mr. Montgomery and gave Mrs. Snitchler her approximately \$400.00 per month. The stipulation accepted by Mrs. Snitchler waives her right in the monthly payments and grants her a percentage in the partial lump sum. There was no misunderstanding of the import or intent of the stipulation. Both Mrs. Snitchler and her counsel understood the two options. (Transcript Page 14 Line 10 - 18.)

Nothing has changed in the circumstances of the parties since the entry of the new QDRO. The full effect and intent of the stipulation was carried out. Mr. Montgomery retired based upon the stipulation. There must be some change of circumstance to justify a modification.

The Utah Supreme Court strongly stated the necessity of a change of circumstance in *Kessimakis v Kessimakis*, 580 P.2d 1090

(Utah 1978).

This Court is clearly committed to the proposition that in order to modify a prior decree the moving party must show a substantial change in circumstance. In the absence of such a showing, the decree shall not be modified and the matters previously litigated and incorporated therein cannot be collaterally attacked in face of the doctrine of res judicata. Consequently, [the] attempt to challenge the equity of the original decree cannot be tolerated.

In the present case the stipulation and the subsequent order did exactly what the parties anticipated it would. Mrs. Snitchler was entitled to exactly what she bargained for. But for, her own complaint to the Office of Personnel Management and her subsequent dissatisfaction with the bargain she struck she would have received exactly what she was promised. (Transcript Page 38 Line 8.)

When Mr. Montgomery finally received his lump sum payment he tendered the 27% amount as agreed. Mrs. Snitchler has and is still refusing to take the payment. (Transcript Page 6 Line 25 to Page 7 Line 2; Page 38 Line 15.)

Mrs. Snitchler had no obligation to sign the stipulation and allow Mr. Montgomery to retire and take the partial lump sum retirement option. Mr. Montgomery in 1989 had explained to her and as did his counsel later through Mr. Kunz that Montgomery would not retire early if he had to pay \$400.00 per month. The choice presented to Mrs. Snitchler was take a lump sum now or wait perhaps as many as ten years to receive anything. There was an extreme time dead line. If the papers were not completed by November 30, 1990 the option was gone forever. She chose to sign the

stipulation and take a portion of the lump sum and waive any right to the monthly payments. (Transcript Page 36 Line 18 to Page 37 Line 1.)

Nothing has changed since the parties negotiated the new order except Mrs. Snitchler has become dissatisfied with her bargain. She now wants to go back and get more after Mr. Montgomery has irretrievably altered his position by retiring in reliance on the order agreed to by the parties.

It would be unjust in the extreme to allow Mrs. Snitchler to go back on her word. The plain language of the stipulation and order waives any right to future monthly payments. Both she and her attorney understood that was the meaning of the documents. She got exactly what she bargained for.

This is a case where the parties entered a stipulation that was negotiated by counsel and approved by the court. Its full, understood intent was carried out. Mrs. Snitchler wants a modification simply because of dissatisfaction with the amount of money. She understands that if she can get a percentage of the monthly payments in an amount of \$400.00 per month rather than a percentage of the lump sum she is likely to make much more from the labor of her ex-husband. The difficulty is that Montgomery retired now, only because of her inducement to limit what she received to a percentage of the lump sum.

The reason to change a stipulated, court reviewed and approved order must be compelling and not just because one party is upset about value. *Mitchell v Mitchell*, 527 P.2d 1359 (Utah 1974).

When the parties have had the opportunity to have a determination of their issues then they become res judicata. The doctrine also applies to divorce decrees. *Jacobson v Jacobson*, 703 P.2d 303 (Utah 1985).

It should also be noted that no where in the court's ruling do the words "substantial change of circumstance" occur. (Transcript Page 46 Line 23 to Page 52.)

POINT II

THERE WAS NO MISREPRESENTATION.

The trial court found that Mr. Montgomery misrepresented the facts to his ex-wife. The trial court hangs the whole modification on a misrepresentation. The court states its finding as follows:

And I think in that process, the defendant deliberately misrepresented to both -- to the plaintiff what the benefit was, and never at any time was it conveyed to the plaintiff what the actual entitlement was, that is, that there was a lump sum payment of the 29,774 plus the \$1776 per month. Apparently that's not even determined until March 14th, 1991 when Mr. Montgomery signs the document at that time agreeing that that's what he is to receive. (Transcript Page 49 Line 15 - 22.)

It is hard to imagine how the trial court reached the conclusion that Mr. Montgomery misrepresented anything to his ex-wife. The court focuses on the problem. How could the defendant misrepresent something in October of 1989 when he was not even informed until March 14, 1991.

When pressed for what the misrepresentation was, the court

responded,

The misrepresentation goes clear back to the time on October 10th of 1990 when they were signing the agreement where the representation was that the total retirement was \$29,774. And that was a total lump sum settlement. And so she had a 20 -- in effect, a certain percentage of that. and that was a misrepresentation. All right. That's all. (Transcript Page 51 Line 20 to Page 52 Line 1.)

This makes no sense. In October of 1989 they met to each sign the necessary papers for the other to take the partial lump sum retirement option. Mrs. Snitchler signed the paper and informed Mr. Montgomery that she had already obtained hers without his signature. Defendant's Exhibit 1 is the document she signed. There is nothing arcane or obscure about it. It is the request for retirement that every Civil Service employee including Mrs. Snitchler had to sign.

The Office of Personnel Management sent back Mr. Montgomery's request with the statement that there was an existing Qualified Domestic Relations Order that had to be modified first before Montgomery could be allowed the partial lump sum option. (Transcript Page 23 Line 15 - 19.)

No where does Mrs. Snitchler's make the allegation that Mr. Montgomery told her that the partial lump sum was all the retirement she would receive. There is no evidence for the court's finding of a misrepresentation. She affirmatively states what the October 1989 government document was for. "The reason for this paper was that he could receive his lump sum just as I, and there was no other comments." (Transcript Page 32 Line 2 - 3.)

The misrepresentation was said to begin at the meeting in

front of the notary when the parties were to sign each other's documents for the partial lump sum distribution. Mrs. Snitchler informed Montgomery that he did not have to sign because she already had her lump sum. (Transcript Page 31 Line 1 - 8.) After that time the parties had no further conversations.

Mrs. Snitchler thereafter only communicated with her ex-husband through counsel. She made her decision as to whether or not to sign a new QDRO based upon her consultations with her attorney. Neither Mrs. Snitchler nor her counsel relied on Mr. Montgomery nor his counsel for any understanding of anything. The stipulation its self clearly says that she will not receive anything from the future monthly payments. She admits to understanding this fact as well. (Transcript Page 12 Line 24 to Page 13 Line 1.)

It is hard to believe that she did not understand that Mr. Montgomery was going to receive a monthly amount for retirement in addition to the lump sum annuity. She had only recently gone through the same retirement process. (Transcript Page 31 Line 1 - 8.)

Mrs. Snitchler never makes the allegation that Mr. Montgomery told her anything one way or the other. These people simply did not talk. It cannot be claimed that the misrepresentation was made vicariously through counsel. Mrs. Snitchler relied on her own counsel who made his own independent investigation of the facts and advised her accordingly. (Transcript Page 10 Line 13 to Page 13 Line 4.)

Not even Mr. Kunz claims to having received false or misleading information from opposing counsel. So where is the misrepresentation. The strongest statement made by Mr. Kunz, is that "after that conversation (with government retirement officers) that I had a brief conversation with Mr. Hughes wherein I think I informed him of the information I had received from Washington." (Transcript Page 12 Line 8 - 11.)

Mrs. Snitchler had at her command all of her own retirement package, which would have included Defendant's Exhibit 1, anything she cared to request from the Hill Air Force Base Personnel Office, anything she cared to request from the Civil Service Office of Personnel Management, any advice she cared to request from her counsel. The source of the information upon which Mr. Kunz relied in giving his advice was Washington. "[A]nd that stipulation was prepared in accordance with the information that Washington had provided me..." (Transcript Page 13 Line 8.) How can it be said Mr. Montgomery misrepresented anything to her? The stipulation in unmistakable terms states that Mrs. Snitchler by signing the stipulation waives all rights in any and all annuities or monthly payments. It is important to note that no where is there language in the stipulation that would lead to the conclusion that Mr. Montgomery was not going to get regular monthly payments.

The ultimate decision to sign and induce Mr. Montgomery to take an early retirement was Mrs. Snitchler's. Mrs. Snitchler had an absolute right not to sign the stipulation. Had she chosen not to, the pre-existing QDRO would have remained in force and effect.

The difference would have been that Mr. Montgomery would have continued working and accumulating retirement benefits until his retirement would have reached a level on which he felt he could retire comfortably and still pay his ex. Had she decided the monthly payment of approximately \$400.00 per month was more important than getting her share of the partial lump sum now she could have simply not signed the stipulation.

Mrs. Snitchler is trying to get the best of both worlds at Mr. Montgomery's expense. She would not have received retirement benefits now unless she agreed to the stipulation. If there has been a misrepresentation it is Mrs. Snitchler. She promised a division of the retirement benefit and got counsel and the court as well as Mr. Montgomery to go along. Now she wants to rescind her promise after Mr. Montgomery has changed his position and retired.

The present case is an incident where the trial court overturned a stipulated and court approved modification to a divorce decree. It is inconceivable that Mr. Montgomery could have misrepresented anything to his ex-wife. The simple fact is they did not speak. The parties both had the same employer namely Hill Air Force Base. Mrs. Snitchler went through the same retirement process herself just before she signed the government's standard form for spousal consent to the partial lump sum distribution. She knew the people in personnel. She had gotten the forms necessary to get her own retirement benefits. How could the trial court find Montgomery misrepresented anything to her?

But even if something Mr. Montgomery said could be construed

to be a misrepresentation the Office of Personnel Management did not accept the simple signature without a new qualified domestic relations order replacing the one they had on file.

Mrs. Snitchler made an intelligent decision based on considerations such as her health and that of her ex-husband as to whether she should take a substantial lump sum payment now or wait for possibly ten years to begin receiving a monthly payment. She chose the immediacy of the lump sum in consultation with her attorney. She induced Mr. Montgomery to retire.

Mr. Montgomery radically changed his position by leaving his employment and retiring. He did so on the basis of the promises made by his ex in the stipulation and in reliance on the court's order made pursuant to the stipulation. Mr. Montgomery would not have retired but for his ex-wife's promises.

Mr. Montgomery's position is forever altered to his detriment by Judge Cornaby's modification. He can not go back to work but is stuck in living on an income that does not meet his needs because of the court altering a stipulation that was negotiated at arms length and in good faith.

It appears that the court was determined to reach a result the law would not allow and therefore found a misrepresentation. There is simply no evidence of a misrepresentation. Equity requires that Mr. Montgomery be restored to the benefit of his bargain. The cost to him of upholding the trial court's decision is simply too great.