1992

Hilde B. Montgomery (Snitchler) v. Robert G. Montgomery : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

The Court of Appeals of the State of Utah has jurisdiction to review all final judgments and orders of the District Court involving domestic relations cases pursuant to Section 78-2a-3, Utah Code Annotated (1953, as amended) and Rule 3 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

THE COURT CORRECTLY MODIFIED THE STIPULATION WHICH HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN ENTERED INTO BY THE PARTIES REGARDING PLAINTIFF'S ENTITLEMENT TO DEFENDANT'S RETIREMENT BENEFITS.

A Stipulation based on inaccurate information or misrepresentation can be set aside. Gates v. Gates, 787 P.2d 1344 (Utah App. 1990). As long as the Court has made adequate factual findings, they should not be disturbed unless clearly erroneous, against the clear weight of evidence or the appellate Court determines that there was a misunderstanding or misapplication of the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error. Dunn v. Dunn, 802 P.2d 1314 (Utah App. 1990) and Andersen v. Andersen, 757 P.2d 476, 479 (Utah App. 1988).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. Nature of the Case.

This is an appeal from an order granting plaintiff's Petition for Modification regarding her entitlement to defendant's retirement benefits of the Second Judicial District Court, Davis County, State of Utah.

II. Course of Proceedings.

The parties were divorced on November 6, 1985. Pursuant to the terms of the Decree of Divorce, the plaintiff was awarded a one-half interest in the defendant's retirement with the appropriate offset for

his share of her retirement, all based on the formula set forth in Woodward v. Woodward, 656 P.2d 431 (1982).

Shortly after the divorce, the parties entered into a Stipulation modifying the Decree, wherein they agreed that after the Woodward formula was applied to the parties' respective retirements, the plaintiff would be entitled to receive \$400.00 per month from the defendant's retirement which would begin concurrently with the defendant's civil service retirement.

On November 2, 1990, the parties entered into a new Stipulation wherein the plaintiff agreed that she would settle her full claims against the defendant's retirement by having the retirement office pay her the lump sum of \$8,100.00 during the same time the defendant received the remaining portion of his lump sum entitlement.

On August 13, 1991, the plaintiff filed her Petition for Modification. A trial was held January 8, 1992, at which time the Court announced its decision from the bench. Specific Findings of Fact and Order were subsequently prepared and signed by the Court on February 6, 1992. They are attached as an Addendum to this Brief.

III. Disposition at Trial Court.

The Court found that the defendant had misrepresented to the plaintiff what the retirement benefits were and never conveyed to her what her actual entitlement was or could be, and that misrepresentation caused the plaintiff to enter into the Stipulation dated November 2, 1990. Accordingly, the Court set aside that Stipulation and entered a new Order which closely approximated that which had been granted to the plaintiff at the time of the original divorce.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The parties were married on June 13, 1964. As a result of the marriage, two children were born. (R 1) During the course of the marriage, defendant accumulated 21.6 years of civil service retirement benefits and the plaintiff accumulated 2.6 years of civil service retirement benefits. (R 61)

The parties were divorced on November 6, 1985. Among other things, the plaintiff waived any claim for alimony. (R 52) She was also awarded one-half of defendant's retirement, with the appropriate offset for his share of her retirement based upon the formula set forth in Woodward v. Woodward, 656 P.2d 431 (1982).

(R 52) The Decree of Divorce was signed
December 16, 1985. (R 56)

On December 28, 1985, the parties entered into a Stipulation modifying the retirement portion of the Decree of Divorce just referred to. The parties agreed the plaintiff would be awarded the specific sum of \$400.00 per month as her share of defendant's retirement which was to begin in the month the defendant retired and continue so long as he was entitled to his retirement. The Stipulation took into account the retirement the plaintiff had accumulated in her own right through civil service employment. The Order implementing the Stipulation was signed by the Court on January 8, 1986. (R 58-61)

Sometime in approximately August of 1990, the plaintiff met with Ogden Attorney Paul T. Kunz because the defendant had approached her and asked her if she would consent to his taking a lump sum settlement of his retirement benefits. A proposed Stipulation for Qualified Domestic Relations Order had been prepared by defendant's attorney and she wanted Attorney Kunz to review it and see whether it was in her interest to sign the Stipulation. (T 8-9)

The Stipulation provided:

1. The plaintiff has left government service early and has received a one-time payment of her retirement contributions. Defendant by agreement signed the release of said funds to the plaintiff. The plaintiff in return signed a waiver of any right she may have against the lump sum of the defendant's alternative annuity with lump sum.
3. The retirement administrator will not honor the written waiver of plaintiff without a modification of the divorce Decree.
4. The parties agree a Qualified Domestic Relations Order may be issued authorizing the plan administrator to pay retirement as follows:
 - a. In the event defendant chooses the alternative annuity with lump sum payment, defendant shall receive all of the lump sum.
 - b. Plaintiff shall receive one-half of fifty-five percent of the monthly retirement check due to defendant each month.
 - c. In January of 1986, the monthly amount was then calculated to be \$400.00 per month. This amount may vary depending on the actual monthly amount paid as determined at the time of actual retirement.
5. This agreement is to supersede any existing order and to become the governing law between the parties.
6. The parties agree to execute such documents as may be required to affect their intent as expressed herein.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 1)

In an effort to properly advise the plaintiff, Mr. Kunz called retirement individuals at Hill Air Force Base and subsequently called the Office of Personnel Management in Washington, D.C. to obtain additional information concerning alternatives available to the plaintiff. Based on the information Mr. Kunz received, he came to the conclusion that both parties either had to accept the lump sum benefit or both parties had to accept the monthly benefit and that one party could not pull out the lump sum and then the secondary party receive monthly benefits. It was also his understanding that if the lump sum benefit was to be accepted, there would be no further benefits.

(T 10-12)

Because of that information, defendant's attorney prepared a new Stipulation wherein the plaintiff agreed the defendant could apply for his lump sum distribution and she would be entitled to receive \$8,100.00 of that lump sum payment as her share of the defendant's retirement benefits. Admittedly, the new Stipulation provides:

Upon payment of the twenty-seven percent of the lump sum totally (sic) approximately \$8,100.00, no further sums shall be paid to the plaintiff and any remaining

rights or benefits shall be the exclusive property of the defendant. Plaintiff waives all other rights, present and future in the defendant's retirement, including any annuity or regular retirement benefits. (R 68-69)

Before signing the Stipulation, Mr. Kunz explained to the plaintiff that:

It's my understanding that if you go with a lump sum, neither one of you will receive any monthly payments, that they make you go strictly one way or the other and that we don't have any alternative. (T 12)

According to Mr. Kunz, the plaintiff indicated that:

Well, if that is the case, he had consented for me to take out my lump sum. I feel that I am sort of honor bound to let him do it. (T 12-13)

Mr. Kunz further testified that had he known that in addition to the lump sum payment benefit Mr. Montgomery was applying for he would have also been entitled to go on receiving monthly retirement payments, he never would have agreed to sign the Stipulation with the plaintiff. It was clear to him that the mathematics of an \$8,100.00 lump sum settlement versus \$400.00 per month indefinitely was not a good bargain if both were available. (T 13)

During the trial, the defendant introduced defendant's Exhibit 1. The second sheet of the Exhibit is a document entitled Alternative Annuity Election. Option 2 of that form was signed by the parties which indicated that the defendant was electing to take an alternative annuity with lump sum payment and the plaintiff was consenting to that alternative annuity election. Although the form does refer to a monthly annuity in addition to the lump sum payment, no annuity amount or other information was provided on that form. The third sheet of Exhibit 1, another Alternative Annuity Election form, had all of the blanks filled in and had been signed by the defendant on March 14, 1991. This document was not signed by the plaintiff. It revealed that had the defendant decided to retire without making a request for a lump sum payment, he would have received a regular monthly annuity of \$1,914.00. By making the lump sum alternative election, however, he received a lump sum payment of \$29,774.17 plus an on-going monthly annuity of \$1,776.00.

The plaintiff testified that when she signed the second sheet of defendant's Exhibit 1 on October 10, 1989, she did not know that in addition to

the lump sum payment, the defendant would be receiving an additional monthly annuity retirement benefit. Had she known that information, she would not have signed an agreement waiving any monthly annuity. (T 37) At the time the plaintiff signed the specific waiver, she indicated that she asked for a copy of the informational cover sheet, which was page 1 of defendant's Exhibit 1, and she stated that:

The lady notary had it and was going to copy it, and he ripped it out of her hands. I don't have anything and he would not let me have it either. (T 31)

The fact that defendant was receiving a monthly annuity in addition to the lump sum was brought to light primarily because the plaintiff did not receive her \$8,100.00 lump sum share after the defendant retired. He had already received approximately \$17,000.00 of his lump sum benefits (T 17) and as of the date of the hearing, the plaintiff had not received anything. (T 37)

At the conclusion of the trial, the Court entered its findings and order, finding that the defendant failed to convey to the plaintiff what the actual entitlement was, that when she signed page 2 of Exhibit 1 it was in blank and that left her with the

understanding that the only benefit available would be the lump sum payment for a total settlement and that this lack of information constituted the misrepresentation. (T 48-51) and (R 110-116) The specific Finding provides:

10. At the time the plaintiff signed defendant's Exhibit 1, the defendant deliberately misrepresented to the plaintiff what the benefits were and never conveyed to her what her actual entitlement was or could be. This misrepresentation caused the plaintiff to enter into the Stipulation dated November 2, 1990.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The plaintiff entered into a Stipulation based upon misinformation. The defendant did not provide all relevant facts to her when he asked her to agree to modify an earlier retirement Stipulation. The trial Court exercised its equitable power to modify the Stipulation and restore the plaintiff to the position she would have been in had the true facts been known. The Order should be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

THE COURT CORRECTLY MODIFIED THE STIPULATION WHICH HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN ENTERED INTO BY THE PARTIES REGARDING PLAINTIFF'S ENTITLEMENT TO DEFENDANT'S RETIREMENT BENEFITS.

The case of Gates v. Gates, 787 P.2d 1344 (Utah App. 1990) is closely analogous to this case.

In Gates, the trial Court modified a Stipulation increasing child support which had been entered into by the parties. The Court did so, acknowledging there had been no material change in circumstances, but justified the modification because of Mr. Gates' failure to disclose his true income. The failure to disclose was not really an express misrepresentation as much as it was an omission of facts given to his ex-wife.

In Gates, as in this case, appellant contended that it was error to modify a Stipulation absent a change in circumstances; there was no actual misrepresentation; and, since Mrs. Gates was represented by counsel, she had a duty to ascertain the true facts.

On appeal, the Court held that:

Since respondent did not have accurate information about appellant's income at the time she executed the Stipulation, the trial Court did not err in modifying its prior order based on that Stipulation. A party may not obtain a Stipulation based on a misrepresentation or material omission of facts and later claim that a child support order cannot be modified because there has been no material change in circumstances based on those same undisclosed or misrepresented facts. at 1346

The Gates case did seem to create some limitation to this rule when it cited Myers v. Myers, 768 P.2d 979 (Utah App. 1989) holding that contract theories of bargain and waiver can be applied to stipulations involving property distribution, but not "to issues which involve the continuing, equitable powers of the Court, such as child custody and support". at 1346. That limitation, if it is one, should be inapplicable to this case because we are dealing with a form of support for Mrs. Snitchler. When the Woodward formula was created by the Supreme Court in 1982, they referred to pension benefits as an "economic resource subject to equitable distribution".

Alternatively, the Myers holding should be narrowed to permit an additional exception to a case such as this. Even better would be to eliminate the limitation altogether. It makes little sense in cases of equity to allow a person to profit from active or passive misinformation knowingly relied upon by the other party.

This had been a marriage of forty-one years. During that time, Mr. Montgomery was able to accumulate 21.6 years of civil service retirement while Mrs. Montgomery only accumulated 2.6 years. Her original

Stipulation entitlement of Mr. Montgomery's retirement was to be \$400.00 per month commencing at his retirement. This took into account her own civil service retirement benefit amount.

Had Mr. Montgomery elected not to request a lump sum payment, he would have received \$1,914.00 per month, less the \$400.00 due Mrs. Montgomery. By electing the lump sum payment, his monthly annuity is only reduced to \$1,776.00 and he received \$29,774.00 cash. He wants to be forgiven of any further obligation to his former wife by paying her \$8,100.00 out of his cash settlement. That result is not logical or equitable.

Mr. Montgomery argues that he has radically changed his position by retiring and he only did so in reliance on the Stipulation signed by his ex-wife. He claims he would have continued to work had he known she would attempt to back out of the Stipulation. His argument belies the facts. The first Stipulation he presented to her for signing provided that she would receive one-half of fifty-five percent of his monthly retirement check if she would waive any claim to the lump sum distribution. As it turns out, had she signed that Stipulation, he would have received and kept